
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, January 13, 2015                                                                                                  City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Planning Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

OATH OF OFFICE TO NEWLY ELECTED COUNCIL MEMBER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

RECEPTION FOR NEWLY ELECTED COUNCILMEMBERS, MAYOR AND MAYOR PRO TEM 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 18, 2014; 7:00 p.m. Special Meeting and November 25, 2014 Regular 

Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Execute Grant Agreement with King County for Recycling Program (Vondran) 
C-4. Appointments to Council’s Commission Interview Sub Committees (Council) 
C-5. Appointments to Council’s Commission Exit Interview Sub Committee (Council) 
C-6. Appointments to Council’s Audit Committee (Hendrickson) 
C-7. Covington Water District Right-of-Way Deed (Lyons) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Set Date to Consider Initiation of an Annexation for Hawk Property (Hart) 
2. Appointments to 2015 Representatives to Regional Boards and Committees (Council) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 

ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  December 9, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  NOVEMBER 18, 2014, 7:00 PM, CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND NOVEMBER 25, 2014 CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the November 18, 2014, 7:00 p.m. City 
Council Special Meeting Minutes and November 25, 2014 City 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 92



Unapproved Draft – November 18, 2014 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 13, 2015 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Special City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 18, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
November 18, 2014, at 7:03 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, 
Personnel Manager; Casey Parker, Deputy Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; 
Sara Springer, City Attorney; Salina Lyons, Principal Planner; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; Robert 
Meyers, Chief Building Official; Brian Bykonen, Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer; Kelly 
Thompson, Permit Center Coordinator; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLICATION COMMUNICATION: 
Council recognized Chief Building Official Robert Meyers for completion of certification as a 
Master Code Professional. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  October 14, 2014 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes; October 25, 2014 City 

Council Budget Workshop Minutes; October 28, 2014 City Council Special Joint Study 
Session with Arts Commission Minutes; October 28, 2014 City Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes; and November 3, 2014 City Council Special Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #31694-31694, in the Amount of $95.50, Dated October 21, 2014; 

Vouchers #31695-31735, including ACH Payments in the Amount of $108,591.70, Dated 

2 of 92



Unapproved Draft – November 18, 2014 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 13, 2015 
 

2 
 

October 28, 2014; Electronic Funds Transfers in the Amount of $797,108.39, Dated 
October 31, 2014; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002961437-1002961457 and Paylocity 
Payroll Check #1002961542-1002961542 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $161,389.83, Dated October 24, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003012849-1003012870 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$159,077.99, Dated November 7, 2014.    
 

C-3. Approve Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with Maple Valley for Storage of Deicer. 
 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda as amended to delete the clerical error of an extra “0” from 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002961437-1002961457.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider 2015 Legislative Agenda. 
 
Interim City Manager Rob Hendrickson and Legislative Consultant Briahna Taylor, Vice 
President of Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs, gave the staff report on this 
item. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
adopt the 2015 Legislative Agenda as amended to revise the fourth bulleted item in 
Attachment 1 of the staff report in the agenda packet to read, “Transportation Investment 
Package:  Strongly support adoption of a comprehensive transportation investment 
package that funds SR 516, distributes gas tax revenues to cities and counties and 
authorizes the authority to solve problems regionally.” Also as amended to revise the tenth 
bulleted item in Attachment 1 of the staff report in the agenda packet to read, “AWC, 
PSRC, & SCA Legislative Programs:  Support the Association of Washington Cities 
(AWC), Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC), and Sound Cities Association (SCA) 
legislative programs.”  Vote: 7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Discuss Human Services Commission Recommendation for 2015/16 Funding. 
 
Human Services Chair Fran McGregor gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. McGregor and Personnel & 
Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm provided responses. 
 
3.  Consider Resolution Adopting 2015 Community Development Fees. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart introduced this item, and Permit Services 
Coordinator Kelly Thompson gave the staff report. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and compliments. 
 
 

3 of 92



Unapproved Draft – November 18, 2014 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 13, 2015 
 

3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE 
DEVELOPMENT AND PERMIT FEES, ADMINISTRATIVE 
FEES, AND TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES FOR 2015. 
 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 14-17 amending the development, building permit, and administrative, 
and transportation impact fees for 2015, as proposed.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  2014 Third Quarter Financial Report. 
 
Deputy Finance Director Casey Parker gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Ms. Parker provided responses. 
 
5.  Consider Selection of Candidate for the Position of City Manager. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
select Regan Bolli for the position of City Manager.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
authorize the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem and Personnel Manager to negotiate, on Council’s 
behalf, an employment contract with Mr. Bolli with the final contract bought back to 
Council for approval.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

4 of 92



Unapproved Draft–November 25, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 13, 2015 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 25, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
November 25, 2014, at 7:10 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, 
Personnel Manager; Casey Parker, Deputy Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; 
Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Vouchers:  Vouchers #31736-31799, including ACH Payments and an Electronic Funds 

Transfer and Voided Voucher #31800 in the Amount of $540,060.02, Dated November 
10, 2014 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003069579-1003069597 and Paylocity Payroll 
Check #1003069600-1003069600 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $158,348.09, Dated November 21, 2014. 
 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo 
seconded to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the November 13 meeting. 

: 

 

5 of 92



Unapproved Draft–November 25, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 13, 2015 
 

 2 

Parks & Recreation – There was no report for the November 19 meeting; the next meeting is 
January 21. 
 
Arts Commission – Chair Lesli Cohan reported on the November 13 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Community Development Director Richard Hart reported on the 
November 20 meeting.  The November 6 meeting was canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – The next meeting is December 4. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Public Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Budget and Consider 
Ordinances Setting the 2014 Property Tax Levy for Collection in 2015 and Authorizing a 
Property Tax Increase. 
 
Deputy Finance Director Casey Parker gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
THE REGULAR PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 2014 FOR 
COLLECTION IN 2015. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 13-14 setting the 2014 property tax levy for collection in 2015 at $2,500,000.  
Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZING A PROPERTY TAX 
INCREASE IN TERMS OF BOTH DOLLARS AND 
PERCENTAGES AS PURSUANT TO RCW 84.55.120. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
pass Ordinance No. 14-14 authorizing a property tax increase of two-tenths of a percent 
(0.2%) or $4,976, pursuant to RCW 84.55.120.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Consider Resolution Increasing Surface Water Management Rates. 

6 of 92



Unapproved Draft–November 25, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 13, 2015 
 

 3 

 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hendrickson and Mr. 
Vondran provided responses including a suggestion to review this item in a couple of years. 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  14-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A 
NEW SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT FEE SCHEDULE; AND 
REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 10-24 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 14-18 adopting an annual Surface Water Management rate increase of 
five percent to begin in 2015 with the final increase going into effect in 2020.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
Mr. Vondran asked for clarification on the changes worksheet which would be included in the 
budget adoption agenda item at the City Council December 9 meeting. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to include the 2015 
programmed capital needs of the Surface Water Management program into the 2015 
budget process which included $52,609 in facility rehabilitation, $369,200 in neighborhood 
drainage improvements, $97,523 in neighborhood ditch maintenance, and $37,080 in 
capital equipment. 
 
3.  Approve City Manager Contract Resolution. 
 
Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Beaufrere provided 
responses. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR CITY 
MANAGER AND DELEGATING ADMINISTRATIVE POWERS 
AND DUTIES TO THE CITY MANAGER.    

 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 14-19 authorizing the mayor to execute the proposed contract for city 
manager and delegating administrative powers and duties to the city manager.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 

7 of 92



Unapproved Draft–November 25, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  January 13, 2015 
 

 4 

 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to cancel the December 23 City Council 
meeting. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to appoint Mayor Harto as voting delegate 
to Sound Cities Association annual dinner meeting on December 17. 
 
Councilmember Snoey announced that he would step down from the council effective December 
31, 2014 to take care of his health and devote more time to family and work. 
 
Mayor Harto invited Councilmember Snoey’s wife, Debra, to attend the next council meeting on 
December 9. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to open the city councilmember position 
immediately and advertise, indicating that anyone who is interested in the position can 
send a letter to the Council, with a closing date of January 2 so that Council can conduct 
the interviews in an open meeting and make a selection with enough time for that person to 
participate in the Council Annual Summit on January 31. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington, thanked Interim City Manager Rob 
Hendrickson for his service in the last few months and wished a Happy Thanksgiving to 
everyone. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

8 of 92



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 13, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #31838-31901, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 
Transfers in the Amount of $745,668.51, Dated December 8, 2014; Vouchers #31902-31957, 
including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers in the Amount of $668,102.41, Dated 
December 22, 2014; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003188095-1003188107 and Paylocity 
Payroll Check #1003188110-1003188110 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $160,904.49, Dated December 19, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003247936-1003247943 and Paylocity Payroll Check #1003247949-1003247949 inclusive, 
Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $151,135.93, Dated January 2, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #31838-31901, including ACH 
Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers in the Amount of $745,668.51, 
Dated December 8, 2014; Vouchers #31902-31957, including ACH 
Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers in the Amount of $668,102.41, 
Dated December 22, 2014; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003188095-
1003188107 and Paylocity Payroll Check #1003188110-1003188110 
inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $160,904.49, 
Dated December 19, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003247936-
1003247943 and Paylocity Payroll Check #1003247949-1003247949 
inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $151,135.93, 
Dated January 2, 2015. 
 
 
 
  
 

 

9 of 92



10 of 92



11 of 92



12 of 92



13 of 92



14 of 92



15 of 92



16 of 92



17 of 92



18 of 92



19 of 92



20 of 92



21 of 92



22 of 92



23 of 92



24 of 92



25 of 92



26 of 92



27 of 92



28 of 92



29 of 92



30 of 92



31 of 92



32 of 92



33 of 92



34 of 92



35 of 92



 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 13, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT 

WITH KING COUNTY FOR THE WASTE REDUCTION AND RECYCLING 
PROGRAM FOR 2015 – 2016. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1.  Contract No. 5728394 for 2015 – 2016 Waste Reduction and Recycling Program 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City of Covington has previously received and used grant monies from King County to 
provide the community with waste reduction and recycling event opportunities.  This grant 
provides partial compensation for activities outlined in the Olympic Environmental Resources 
(OER) agreement adopted by the City Council in December of 2014. 
 
The City of Covington uses these grant funds, in addition to other grant funding, to provide the 
community with two residential recycling collection events and one business recycling collection 
event each year.  This grant is for $51,742 to carry out recycling collection events during 2015 
and 2016. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
If the grant funds are not approved by the city council then the above noted recycling events will 
not be provided to the citizens of Covington. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no net cost to the City of Covington.  This grant money has been included in the 2015 
budget in the Central Services Fund under Recycling Promotion.  By combining funds from 
three separate grants, the city is able to provide the recycling programs by contracting with a 
private company for provision of the services with 100% of the costs covered, including city 
staff time. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a grant agreement with 
King County for the Waste Reduction and Recycling Program for 2015 - 
2016. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 
 

36 of 92



37 of 92



38 of 92



39 of 92



40 of 92



41 of 92



42 of 92



43 of 92



44 of 92



45 of 92



46 of 92



47 of 92



48 of 92



49 of 92



50 of 92



51 of 92



52 of 92



Consent Agenda Item C-4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 13, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE 2015 COMMISSION INTERVIEW 

COMMITTEES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  City Council 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1.  Table of Commission Interview Committees 
 
PREPARED BY:   Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Each year the City Council appoints subcommittees of three or fewer Council members to 
conduct interviews of all council-appointed advisory bodies.   
 
Councilmembers have been contacted and current recruitment results are noted in the attached 
table. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:     
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution     X   Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to approve the appointments as proposed in the attachment. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager 

53 of 92



Covington Commission Interview Committees - 2015

Planning Parks & Recreation CEDC Arts Human Services

Mayor Harto X X X X

Mayor Pro Tem Wagner alt X X X X

CM Lanza X alt X

CM Scott X X X

CM Mhoon X alt

CM Cimaomo X alt

CM Smith alt

ATTACHMENT 1

54 of 92



Consent Agenda Item C-5  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  January 13, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE 2015 EXIT INTERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  City Council 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
None 
 
PREPARED BY:   Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Each year the City Council appoints a subcommittee of three or fewer Council members to 
conduct exit interviews of all departing members of council-appointed advisory bodies.   
 
Councilmembers Lanza, Scott and Mhoon have agreed to serve on this committee. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:     
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution     X   Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to appoint Councilmembers Lanza, Scott and Mhoon to a Council 
subcommittee to conduct exit interviews. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager 

55 of 92



 Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 13, 2015 
 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER APPOINTING A NEW COUNCIL MEMBER TO THE 

COUNCIL’S AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
None 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
Ordinance 02-12 (CMC 35.25.070) established a permanent audit committee, consisting 
of three council members, to review all of the finances and accounting of the city in 
cooperation with the city’s finance director. Members of the audit committee are to be 
designated by motion.   
 
The council as a whole approves all vouchers, including payroll, at the next available 
council meeting after the audit committee has reviewed the vouchers.  
 
The purpose tonight is to appoint a new member, Jeff Wagner, to the audit committee. 
Current audit committee members Mark Lanza and Marlla Mhoon have expressed a 
desire to continue serving on the audit committee into their next term.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. A council audit committee is not required, thus the council could disband the 
audit committee.  

2. The council could change the number of members in the committee or the 
committee designees.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Not Applicable 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____Ordinance          Resolution      X    Motion         Other 
 
 

Council member    moves, Council member    
  seconds, to pass a motion appointing Councilmember Jeff 
Wagner to the Council’s Audit Committee as required by CMC 
3.25.070. 
 

56 of 92



Consent Agenda Item C-7 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: January 13, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 

DEDICATION OF REAL PROPERTY, IN THE FORM OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-
WAY, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 204TH AVE, IN ASSOCIATION WITH 
THE DEVELOPMENT OF MAPLE HILLS SUBDIVISION (PP99-004). 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Agreement to dedicate right-of-way 
2. Statutory Warranty Deed for dedication of right-of-way 

 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Pursuant to the Hearing Examiner’s Conditions of Approval (“Conditions”) for the plat of Maple 
Hills, City File No. PP99-004/1025, Presidio Merced Acquisition Sourcing LLC (“Developer”) 
is required to improve 204th Ave SE from the south property line of the proposal site to Kent-
Kangley Road to the standards stated in the King County Zoning and Subdivision Examiner 
report, dated May 16, 1986.  In accordance with the Conditions the Developer is required to 
obtain right-of-way along 204th Ave SE and develop the street with 22-foot pavement width 
(two 11-foot travel lanes) on a 38-foot minimum width roadway.  Street improvements along 
204th Avenue SE shall include a paved walk on the west side of the street.  To-date, the 
Developer has completed these minimum improvements with the exception of the portion in 
front of the Covington Water District water tank site, Parcel No. 2922069123. 
 
The 204th Ave SE corridor between Kent-Kangley Road and the Maple Hills site includes a 
combination of existing dedicated right-of-way, access tracts and access easements, and a portion 
of privately owned land. The tracts and easements carry a condition requiring dedication for 
street right-of-way upon demand.  The remaining portion of land is owned by the Covington 
Water District. The Developer and Covington Water District have reached an agreement 
regarding the dedication of 33 feet along the District’s property necessary to complete the 
Conditions for Maple Hills.  (See Attachment 1, Agreement to Dedicate Right-of-Way) 
 
Upon completion of the attached Agreement to Dedicate Right-of-Way, the dedication will be 
transferred to the city as public right-of-way associated with 204th Ave SE.  (Attachment 2) 
 
Based on the requirement of the Hearing Examiner and the agreement between Covington Water 
District and the Developer, staff is requesting the city council to authorize the city manager to 
sign the statutory warranty deeds for the dedication of right-of-way to the city for the 
development of Maple Hills (PP99-004/1025).  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  None.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact.  
 

57 of 92



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion             Other 
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to sign the statutory warranty deed 
for the dedication of right-of-way to the city for the development of Maple 
Hills (PP99-004/1025) 
 

REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director, Public Works Director, Deputy Finance 
Director, City Attorney, Interim City Manager 

58 of 92



ATTACHMENT 1

59 of 92



60 of 92



61 of 92



62 of 92



63 of 92



64 of 92



65 of 92



66 of 92



67 of 92



68 of 92



69 of 92



70 of 92



71 of 92



ATTACHMENT 2

72 of 92



73 of 92



74 of 92



75 of 92



Agenda Item 1  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: January 13, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  HAWK PROPERTY NOTICE OF INTENTION TO COMMENCE THE 

ANNEXATION PROCEEDINGS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                         Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
                                         Ann Mueller, Senior Planner 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Notice of Intention to Commence Annexation & Letter of Authority 
2. Map and legal description of proposed annexation area 
3. Potential Zoning Map – Hawk Property Subarea Plan 
4. Comprehensive Plan Appendix T-3- Annexation Process Criteria 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ann Mueller, Senior Planner  
 
EXPLANATION: 
After several years of study and planning, on February 11, 2014, the city council approved the 
Hawk Property Subarea Plan and associated comprehensive plan and zoning code amendments 
and a Planned Action for the Hawk Property pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act 
(Ord. #01-14, Ord. #02-14, Ord. #03-14 & Ord. #04-14). 

On November 14, 2014, City Council received a Notice of Intention (NOI) to commence the 
annexation proceedings for parcels 2022069152 & 2022069012 using the direct petition method 
from Colin Lund of Oakpointe Holdings LLC. These two parcels are part of the Hawk Property 
Subarea. This annexation proposal consists of approximately 76 acres of land located within the 
city’s Urban Growth Area (UGA) on the north side of the city, southeast of SR 18.  See 
Attachment 1 for the NOI and Attachment 2 for a map and legal description of the property.   

State law requires that the City Council hold a public meeting with the annexation proponents 
within 60 days of receipt of a 10% Notice of Intent to commence the annexation.  

RCW 35A.14.120 Direct petition method 
Prior to circulation of a petition for annexation, the initiating party or parties, who shall be the owners of 
not less than ten percent in value, according to the assessed valuation for general taxation of the property 
for which annexation is sought shall notify the legislative body of the code city in writing of their intention 
to commence annexation proceedings.  

The purpose of tonight’s meeting is for the City Council to determine the following:  
1. Whether the city will accept, reject, or geographically modify the proposed annexation;  
2. Whether the city will require the simultaneous adoption of a proposed zoning regulation, 

if such a proposal has been prepared and filed (as provided for in RCW 35A.14.330 and 
.340); and/or 

3. Whether it will require the assumption of all or any portion of existing city indebtedness 
by the area to be annexed. 

76 of 92



King County tax records list Jim Hawk as the property owner for these two parcels. Attachment 
1 includes a Letter of Authority signed by the property owner, Jim Hawk, giving Oakpointe 
Holdings LLC, authority to initiate and process applications and permits such as this annexation 
proposal.  

King County’s current zoning for these two parcels is MP – Mineral with the P designating some 
Parcel-specific condition. Covington’s Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map and 
associated zoning designations for these two parcels have been adopted and identified in the 
comprehensive code as the Hawk Property Subarea land use designation, along with an 
associated potential zoning of Medium Density Residential (R-6), High Density Residential (R-
12), Mixed Residential (MR) and Regional Commercial Mixed Use (RCMU). (See Attachment 3 
for the potential zoning map of the Hawk Property Subarea). The Hawk Property Subarea 
planning efforts also evaluated a development range of intensity in the Hawk Property and a 
Planned Action Ordinance was approved that will guide future development in this area. 

Staff’s recommendation:  
1) Staff recommends that the City Council accept this 10% Notice of Intention petition for 

parcels 2022069152 & 2022069012, and authorize the circulation of a 60% Direct 
Petition of Annexation for this 76 acre area in the UGA. This acceptance should be 
conditioned as follows: at the time the direct petition for annexation is submitted to the 
city for consideration it will be accompanied with information and studies that address 
and demonstrate consistency with the existing Comprehensive Plan goals and policies in 
the Land Use Element as well as provide the required studies outlined in Appendix T-3- 
Annexation Process Criteria (See Attachment 4 for Appendix T-3, e.g. critical area study, 
identified and surveyed; fiscal impact analysis, infrastructure review, and urban services 
needs), and CMC 14.30.060. 

2) Require that at the time the annexation petition is submitted to the city, a survey prepared 
by a Washington State licensed professional land surveyor or a boundary line adjustment 
application is submitted showing proposed parcel lines and associated zoning (R-6, R-12, 
MR, RCMU) for each parcel consistent with the intent and planning undertaken as part of 
the Hawk Property Subarea Plan. 

3) Require that the property owners within the proposed annexation area be assessed and 
taxed at the same rate and on the same basis as other property within the city limits is 
assessed and taxed to pay for the portion of any outstanding indebtedness of the city, 
which indebtedness has been approved by the voters, contracted for, or incurred prior to, 
or existing at, the date of annexation and that the city has required to be assumed. 

Council’s acceptance of this NOI allows the property owner to submit a direct petition for 
annexation representing not less than sixty percent of the assessed value for the area. Annexation 
would be considered when the City receives this petition and supporting information and studies. 
If the petition is validated and determined sufficient by King County, the annexation will then be 
forwarded to the Boundary Review Board (BRB) for King County to consider.  If the BRB 
approves the annexation, the City Council will hold a public hearing and make a final decision 
on the annexation.  

Upon acceptance of the NOI that by the city council, city staff will send the King County BRB 
an advance courtesy notice of this pending annexation proposal. 

77 of 92



 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Decline the NOI to commence the annexation proceedings.  
2. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The applicant will be required to submit a full fiscal analysis as provided for in Appendix T-3 of 
the city’s Comprehensive Plan at the time they submit their direct petition for annexation.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance      Resolution     X    Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to accept this Notice of Intention to commence the annexation 
proceedings for parcels 2022069152 & 2022069012 located within the city’s 
UGA; conditioned, that at the time of, or prior to, submitting of a direct 
petition for annexation to the city the following shall occur:  
 

1) Zoning. A survey prepared by a Washington State licensed 
professional land surveyor or a boundary line adjustment application 
will be provided showing the proposed location of the zoning districts 
consistent with the Hawk Property Subarea Plan;  

2) Supporting information and studies. All supporting information and 
studies as outlined in the Land Use Element and Appendix T-3 of the 
Covington Comprehensive Plan will be provided to allow staff and 
council to fully evaluate the proposal’s impacts and consistency with 
the city’s codes, plans and policies; and  

3) Debt. Acknowledgement that all property within the annexation area 
will be assessed and taxed at the same rate and on the same basis as 
other property in the city limits, including assessments for taxes and 
payment of any bonds issued or debts contracted prior to or existing 
as of the date of annexation.  

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to direct staff to send the King County Boundary Review Board an 
advance courtesy notice of this annexation proposal, and the proponent will 
be responsible for any associated fee to submit this notice. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager, Deputy Finance Director, City Attorney 

78 of 92



ATTACHMENT 1

79 of 92



80 of 92



81 of 92



SR 18

SE WAX RD

18
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

RAMP

SE 256TH ST

18
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 244TH ST

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
7T

H P
L S

E

SE 265TH ST

SE 262ND PL

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

19
1S

T P
L S

E

194
TH

 AV
E S

E

SE 248TH ST

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

21
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 264TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 244TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

200TH AVE SE

SE 246TH ST

SE 261ST ST

SE 259TH STSE 260TH ST

18
5T

H P
L S

E

186TH PL SE

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

186TH AVE SE

TIMBERLANE DR SE

SE 245TH PL

19
9T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 247TH ST

19
9T

H A
VE

 SE

19
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

20
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 250TH ST

183RD PL SE

19
5T

H P
L S

E

SE 245TH ST

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

SE 267TH ST

201
ST AVE SE

SE 266TH ST

187TH AVE SE

SE 26
3R

D PL

19
0T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 263RD ST

189TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

SE 256TH PL

20
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE
19

6T
H 

PL
 SE

SE 259TH PL

SE 246TH PL

SE 247TH PL

SE 243RD ST

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD 20
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 261ST PL

185TH AVE SE

SE 254TH ST

SE 260TH PL

SE 265TH PL

183RD CT SE

20
4T

H 
PL

 SE

186TH CT SE

SE 257TH PL

20
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 243RD PL

SE 259TH CT

187
TH CT SE

19
8T

H 
CT

 SE
SE 260TH ST18

8T
H 

AV
E 

SE

RAMP

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 266TH ST

SE 248TH ST

SE 266TH ST

RAMP

SE 260TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 244TH ST

SE 263RD PL

20
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

188TH AVE SE

SE 262ND ST

SE 260TH PL

SE 248TH ST

SR 18

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND ST

SE 260TH ST

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

20
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

Jenkins Creek

.1 inch = 1,000 feet

City of Covington 
Annexation Request

Created By: Shawn Buck 12/22/2014

UGA (Urban Growth Area)

Streams/Creeks
City Limits

Hawk Property Subarea

O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER
\Community_Development\One_Time_Use_Projects
\2012\Northern_Notch_Annex_Area
\annex_phase_2_map_annex_area.mxd

Potential Annexation Area

_̂
ATTACHMENT 2

82 of 92



83 of 92



HAWK PROPERTY SUBAREA PLAN | DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

 

Final Plan| February 11, 2014  18 

 

Potential Zoning – Hawk Property Subarea 

 

ATTACHMENT 3

84 of 92



City of Covington Comprehensive Plan Appendix T-3 Annexation Process Criteria 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
August 14, 2012                                                                                       Chapter 2 page 1 

Appendix T-3 
Annexation Process Criteria  

Site-specific considerations such as critical areas, zoning, the efficient and 
cost effective delivery of services and/or extending infrastructure, and the 
concerns of adjacent residents, cities and King County should be considered 
by the City prior to the annexation of any Potential Annexation Areas.  When 
evaluating annexation proposals, the following criteria will be given 
consideration.  Review criteria are intended as guidance rather than 
standards.  

1) A fiscal impact assessment shall be conducted of the costs to provide 
services and/or extend infrastructure and of the tax revenues that 
would be generated in each area proposed for annexation.  

2) Revenues gained by the City through annexation should be at least 
equal to the additional costs incurred by the City or service providers 
for urban services and infrastructure to the area requesting 
annexation. The probability of substantial future financial benefit to 
the city should be considered when deciding on annexation 
proposals. Where reasonable, newly annexed areas shall be required 
to assume a proportionate share of the city's outstanding bonded 
indebtedness at the time of annexation. Reasonableness shall be 
determined by the City Council using the following criteria:  

a. Whether and the degree to which the area to be annexed will benefit 
from the improvements funded by the bonded indebtedness; 

b. The obligation of property owners within the area to be annexed to 
pay other outstanding bonded indebtedness for special district 
improvements, and the extent of that financial burden; 

c.  Whether other financial obligations (such as LlD's) will be placed 
on property owners upon annexation, and the extent of those 
obligations; 

d.  The desirability to the city of annexing the area under consideration. 

3) Individual annexation requests whose physical location would 
promote “leap frog” annexation, resulting in noncontiguous City 
limits, islands or bottle necks of unincorporated land, will not be 
considered. The City shall discourage annexations that would result 
in irregular City boundaries. Annexations shall include the largest 
practicable area contiguous to City limits that still result in logical 
City boundaries.  

ATTACHMENT 4

85 of 92



City of Covington Comprehensive Plan Appendix T-3 Annexation Process Criteria 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
August 14, 2012                                                                                       Chapter 2 page 2 

4) Annexations should be expanded if they include areas surrounded by 
the City on three or more sides or if they include properties with 
recorded covenants to annex.  

5) The City shall only approve annexations that lie completely within 
the UGA and whose proposed zoning are consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. The land use designations specified in the 
Comprehensive Plan shall be used as guidance by the Planning 
Commission in determining the recommended zoning classification. 
If there is no Comprehensive Plan land use designation, then the 
zoning designation Residential -4 should be placed on the annexed 
property until such time as a subarea plan is undertaken to 
appropriately identify new Comprehensive Plan and zoning 
designations.  The land use designations, as determined by the City 
Council through their acceptance of the annexation, shall remain on 
the annexed properties for three  years following annexation. 

6) Consider individual annexation proposals based on an analysis and 
evaluation of the following: 

a. Urban  levels of public services  shall be provided at the City’s 
adopted level of service standards (e.g. police and fire, schools, 
parks, open space, trails and recreation,  transportation, storm water, 
sewer, water and other general government services); 

b. The proposed annexation shall follow logical boundaries, such as 
streets, waterways, ridges, park property, trails, opens space 
corridors or substantial topographical changes; 

c. The proposed annexation should include or exclude an entire 
neighborhood.  The proposal should not divide portions of the 
neighborhood between City and County jurisdictions;  

d. Critical Areas shall be identified, surveyed and appropriately 
protected consistent with the goals and policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Consider inclusion of open space corridors, 
either as greenbelts, trail corridors or urban separators, between the 
City and adjacent jurisdictions. 

e. Consideration should be given to the availability of land within the 
city for the uses which would be developed upon annexation, 
encouraging infilling of existing undeveloped areas before extending 
services which allow similar development in peripheral areas unless 
there is a benefit to the community at large. 

f. Evaluate proposed annexations to ensure that development enabled 
by the annexation is consistent with policies of the comprehensive 
plan specifically including population and employment growth 
targets. 

 

86 of 92



City of Covington Comprehensive Plan Appendix T-3 Annexation Process Criteria 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
August 14, 2012                                                                                       Chapter 2 page 3 

Information and Studies Required 
To adequately assess the merits of annexation proposals, the following 
information should be gathered, analyzed and presented to the City upon 
application for annexation.  

1. Site Analysis. Necessary facts including existing conditions; 
acreage; number of residential units; businesses; industries; 
estimated population; street mileage, paved and unpaved; assessed 
valuations; existing utility services; existing parks and playgrounds; 
schools and public buildings; and Critical Area Study 

2. Maps. Preparation of maps to show existing and proposed city 
boundaries relative to the urban service area, general land use 
patterns, existing and proposed land use designations, critical area 
surveys, existing  major trunk water mains and proposed extensions, 
existing sewer interceptors and proposed extensions, existing streets, 
and existing public areas, such as playgrounds and schools. 

3. Infrastructure Review. Existing public services should be inventoried 
and evaluated. Confer with affected public service districts and 
utility purveyors to assess the impact of the annexation on their 
facilities.  

4. Urban Services Needs. Urban services, such as water services, 
sanitary sewers, stormwater utilities, garbage disposal, streets, street 
lighting, police and fire protection, hospital, planning, building 
inspection, library, park, open space and recreational facilities and 
services should all be analyzed for the need for major capital 
improvements and annual operating needs. These needs should be 
considered in the city’s determination and incorporated into the city 
or utility purveyor’s capital improvement program if the proposed 
annexation is implemented. The city will work cooperatively with 
those public service districts and utility purveyors to determine the 
most rational and cost-effective means for providing urban level 
services to newly annexed areas and proposed land uses, on both a 
short and a long term basis, within parameters allowed in state 
statutes. The methods of providing such services to annexed areas 
should be described and their costs determined.  

5. Special Issues. Any special circumstances created by the proposed 
annexation area should be discussed. Special circumstances may 
include infrastructure, public health or public safety problems, and 
potential impacts to the city due to development within proposed 
annexation areas at the expense of other developable areas within the 
city. 

6. Fiscal Impact Analysis. 

a. Service Requirement Costs. Estimated service requirements from the 
City, public service districts and utility purveyors, should be 

87 of 92



City of Covington Comprehensive Plan Appendix T-3 Annexation Process Criteria 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
August 14, 2012                                                                                       Chapter 2 page 4 

converted into financial requirements to determine the cost of 
extending or improving services and/or infrastructure to 
accommodate the proposed land uses. Needs and costs should be 
estimated for 5 years from the time of annexation, projecting a rate 
of growth which would also be used for projecting revenue 
estimates. Considerations of service costs should include:  

i. Police protection: additional personnel, equipment, office 
space; 

ii. Fire protection: additional personnel, equipment, hydrants, 
fire stations; 

iii. Public services and private utilities:  additional street 
lighting, road maintenance and construction, storm drainage, 
water and sewer construction and maintenance (including 
line replacement, pump stations); 

iv. Parks and recreation: additional park acreage, trails, 
recreational programs, new facilities; and 

v. Other governmental services such as: library, planning, 
building inspection, social service programs. 

b. Estimate of Revenues. An estimate of potential revenues to accrue 
from the area should be made and projected over a 5 year period. 
Existing methods of raising revenue that the city now has should be 
applied to the area being considered for annexation. These would 
include property taxes, state shared revenues, sales taxes, federal 
revenue sharing, business and occupation taxes, utility taxes, 
inspection and license fees, planning and zoning charges. 

c. Cost-Revenue Analysis. The anticipated revenues should be 
compared with anticipated costs, including both projected additional 
annual operating expenses and major capital expenses. The cost-
revenue analysis should be projected for 5 years in order to gain an 
understanding of the impact which development of the newly 
annexed area would have. 

7. Community Identity. The nature of the area proposed for annexation 
relative to surrounding unincorporated areas as well as to adjacent 
city areas should be considered as well. 

88 of 92



Agenda Item 2  
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  January 13, 2015 
 

SUBJECT:   2015 APPOINTMENTS TO REGIONAL FORUMS: 
 

-  South County Area Transportation Board (SCATBd) 
-  Sound Cities Association’s Public Issues Committee (PIC) 
-  Metropolitan Solid Waste Advisory Committee (MSWAC) 
-  Water Resource Inventory Area 9 Forum (WRIA 9) 
-  Kent Fire Department Regional Fire Authority (RFA) 
-  Southeast Area Transportation Solutions (SEATS) 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  City Council 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Table of Regional Forums Requiring Council Appointment 
  

PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
   
EXPLANATION:  
In January of each year, the City Council appoints primary and alternate representatives to 
represent the City of Covington at the above regional forums. Councilmembers have been 
contacted and current recruitment results are noted in the attached table.  
 
SCATBd is currently open and council may wish to have a discussion at the evening’s meeting 
on how best to fill that committee. 
 
At this time it is unclear if SEATS will continue in its current form so there was no need to 
recruit for this committee at this time. This topic is scheduled to be discussed at this year’s Tri-
City Meeting. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Discontinue participation in some of the forums.   
2. Select different primary representatives and alternates than those proposed in the attached 

table. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: None.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance   _____Resolution     X   Motion    ____Other 
 

Councilmember  ______ moves, Councilmember __________  
seconds, to approve the appointments as proposed in the attachment. 

 
Councilmember  ______ moves, Councilmember __________  
seconds, to appoint ________________ to the SCATBd. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager 

89 of 92



                    ATTACHMENT 1 
 

REGIONAL FORUMS REQUIRING COUNCIL APPOINTMENT – 2015 
 

Group Notes Meeting 
Information 

Number 
of 

Positions 

2014 
Alternate 

2014 
Member 2015 Alternate 2015 

Member 

Metropolitan 
Solid Waste 

Advisory 
Committee 
(MSWAC) 

 
Diane Yates 206-296-4406, 
diane.yates@kingcounty.gov. 
The committee advises the Executive, the solid waste 
interlocal forum and the King County Council in all 
matters relating to solid waste management and 
participates in the development of the solid waste 
management system plan. Parking & lunch included. 
 

2nd Friday, 11:15 
am – 1:15 pm @ 

Seattle King Street 
Center 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 
Don Vondran Joe 

Cimaomo Don Vondran Joe 
Cimaomo 

South County 
Area 

Transportation 
Board 

(SCATBd) 

 
Contact: Sally Marks 206-263-4710 or 
sally.marks@kingcounty.gov 
 
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/Pla
nningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Tra
nsportation%20Boards/South_County_Area_Transport
ation_Board.aspx 
 

3rd Tuesday, 
9:00 am @ SeaTac 
City Hall Council 

Chambers 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 
Don Vondran Wayne 

Snoey 

a)Don Vondran 
b)Bob 

Lindskov 
 

Sound Cities 
Association 

(SCA) - 
Public Issues 
Committee 

(PIC)* 

Contact:  Kristy Burwell 206-433-7168 or 
Kristy@SuburbanCities.org,  
 
http://www.suburbancities.org/public_issues/index.shtml 
  

 
2nd Wednesday, 

7:00 pm @ 
Renton City Hall; 

see website to 
confirm 

 

 
1 primary 

& 1 
alternate 

a)Margaret 
Harto 
b) Jeff 

Wagner 

Marlla 
Mhoon 
Chair 

a)Margaret 
Harto 

b)Jeff Wagner  

Marlla 
Mhoon 
Chair 

WRIA 9 Forum 

 
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/apps/watersheds/wriapages/
index.html 
 

Varies – See 
Website for 
information 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 
Don Vondran 

Marlla 
Mhoon 

Co-Chair 
Don Vondran 

Marlla 
Mhoon 

Co-Chair 

Kent Regional 
Fire Authority 

(RFA) 

 
Governing board consists of 3 Kent councilmembers, 3 
Kent fire district commissioners and one non-voting 
Covington councilmember. 
 

1st and 3rd 
Wednesday of 

each month 
1 primary NA Margaret 

Harto NA Margaret 
Harto 

Southeast Area 
Transportation 

Solutions 
(SEATS) 

 
Elected officials from cities of Covington, Black 
Diamond, Maple Valley, Auburn and Enumclaw, formed 
through Interlocal agreement. 
 

Last Wednesday, 
1:00 pm, Cov. City 

Hall 

1 primary 
& 1 

alternate 

a)Jim Scott 
b)Joe Cimaomo 

Wayne 
Snoey NA NA 

 

90 of 92

mailto:diane.yates@kingcounty.gov�
mailto:sally.marks@kingcounty.gov�
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/PlanningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Transportation%20Boards/South_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx�
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/PlanningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Transportation%20Boards/South_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx�
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/PlanningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Transportation%20Boards/South_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx�
http://www.kingcounty.gov/transportation/kcdot/PlanningAndPolicy/RegionalTransportationPlanning/Transportation%20Boards/South_County_Area_Transportation_Board.aspx�
mailto:Kristy@SuburbanCities.org�
http://www.suburbancities.org/public_issues/index.shtml�
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/apps/watersheds/wriapages/index.html�
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/apps/watersheds/wriapages/index.html�


  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  January 13, 2015 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, January 27, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91 of 92



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, January 27, 2015                                                                                                  City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• King Conservation District Update on KCD 2015 Program of Work 
• Announcement of Volunteer of the Year and Commissioner of the Year (Council) 

 
RECEPTION 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 13, 2015 Joint Study Session with Planning Commission and January 13, 2015 

Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  January 8 meeting (December canceled) 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  November 19 and January 21 meetings (Dec. canceled) 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  December 11 and January 8 meetings and January 10 Retreat 
• Planning Chair _________:  December 18 and January 15 meetings (January 1 canceled) 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  December 4 and January 22 meetings 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss Parks Impact Fees (Feser & Consultant – One Hour Presentation) 
2. Approve Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with Covington Transportation Benefit District 

(Hendrickson) 
 

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 

ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 01/08/15 

 

92 of 92

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	01-13-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, January 13, 2015                                                                                                  City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 01-13-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 11.18.2014 (Special) Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 11.25.2014 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 01-13-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachments
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 01-13-15 WRR Grant Blue Sheet
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 01-13-15 WWR Grant Agreement
	Consent C-4 Green Sheet 01-13-15 Blue Sheet Commission Interview Committees
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent C-4 Attachment 1 Commission Interview Committees
	Sheet1

	Consent C-5 Green Sheet 01-13-15 Blue Sheet Commission Exit Interviews
	Consent Agenda Item C-5

	Consent C-7 Green Sheet CWD 204th Easement_Blue Sheet_011315
	Consent Agenda Item C-7
	Covington City Council Meeting

	Consent C-7 Attachment 1_Agmt to Dedicate
	Consent C-7 Attachment 2_Statutory Warranty Deed_204th ROW
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 011315 Blue Sheet NOI Annex
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Combined Attachments 1_4
	Attachment_1_Hawk Property Notice of Annexation Proceedings
	Attachment_2_annex_phase_2_map_annex_area_12222014
	Attachment_3_ HawkProp_SubareaPlan 2014_0204_potential zoning map
	Attachment_4_Appendix_T_3_Annexation___08_14_12

	Item 2 Blue Sheet 01-13-15 Blue Sheet Appointments to Regional Forums
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 Board Representatives 2015
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	01-27-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, January 27, 2015                                                                                                  City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION
	RECEPTION




